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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 
2019 was a year of restructuring in the parent company, Eastinco Mining and Exploration plc (“EME plc” 
or the “Company”), and investment and development of initial operations in our newly acquired Rwandan 
registered subsidiary company, Eastinco Limited (“EME Ltd”).  
 
Following our fundraising in July 2019, the Company focussed its efforts on disposing the Nigerian coal 
mining assets and establishing new natural resource investments in Africa. EME Ltd, was identified as 
a target given its strong local ties and relationships with existing artisanal mining companies. Following 
the conclusion of the agreement to purchase EME Ltd, we sought to raise the necessary funds required 
to invest in a processing plant and heavy earth moving (“HEM”) equipment  to implement our plan.  
Management proceeded to negotiate an operating agreement with our local partners, Kuaka 
Cooperative and the acquisition and assembly of the capital equipment required to improve production, 
efficiency and safety at the Kuaka site. We initially identified the Kuaka site as a viable mine site to start 
operations due to its favourable location near readily accessible supplies of ore, water, power, and 
proximity to transportation links. This, combined with accessible artisanal tailings and strong evidence 
of multiple ore bodies occurring over the 50 hectare site presented an ideal opportunity for partnership. 
We have initially targeted a processing feed rate of 20 to 25 metric tonnes per hour of rare metal bearing 
material, and sought to acquire the capital equipment necessary to process the targeted tonnage.  
 
In the latter part of 2019, the Company commenced geological fieldwork on the Kuaka property. This 
was supported by a low-altitude drone based topographic survey, which  also  generated othro - photo  
coverage  over 30 hectares. The objective was to map the extensive artisanal  workings  over  the 
project, identify   the   main   mineralised  zones   and   the   basic   controls on the pegmatite hosting 
Tantalite, niobium and tin mineralisation. Initial mining in 2020 will generate additional data to enhance 
the conceptual geological model and we anticipate that further geological work will be self-funded from 
wash plant production revenues. 
 
As part of our ethos and Corporate and Social Responsibility (“CSR”) we are firmly committed to working 
with, engaging, and where possible improving the livelihood of the communities in which we operate. To 
this end in 2019 the Company launched a meaningful clean water programme to allow members of the 
local community to source clean drinking water. We also participated in a community support 
programme to help feed members of the community. 
 
In conclusion, 2019 was a year of corporate restructuring and development of a new operational 
direction for the Company. There is now a clear strategy to invest in small-scale producing and near-
production assets, which with relatively small capital investments can produce near-term revenues and 
profitability. To achieve this goal, the Company has made the required start-up investment in capital 
equipment to ready the site for operations in 2020 at the Kuaka Mine site in Rwanda. 

 

 

Charles G Bray 
Chairman 
Date: 08 October 2020 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STRATEGIC REPORT 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 
 
Principal Activities 
 
Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc (“EME”) is an investment company focussed on African mineral 
resource investment opportunities. The Company operates through its 100% owned subsidiary, 
Eastinco Limited (“EME Ltd”), a Rwandan tantalum, tin and tungsten miner.  EME Ltd operates a surface 
mine in conjunction with its partner, Kuaka Cooperative on the coast of Lake Kivu near Musasa, in 
western Rwanda. The Company and its subsidiary businesses explore, mine and develop natural 
resource production operations. 
 
The strategy is to increase productivity and efficiency, whilst improving safety at existing and formerly 
operating artisanal mine sites to generate cash flow, which can be then deployed on new and existing 
areas of exploration thereby minimising capital risk to shareholders and preserving optionality and 
generating superior risk mitigated returns. 
 
Strategic Plan 
 
The EME Strategic plan incorporates a business model based on stakeholder’s interests, business or 
commercial planning and growth.  Effectively combining the interests of all stakeholders allows for us to 
competently execute plans promoting the company’s best commercial interests and allow for future 
growth. 
 
The Business Model 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STRATEGIC REPORT(continued) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
Corporate & Social Responsibility 
Our Communities  
  
EME is committed to being a responsible corporate body by managing the environmental and social 
impact of our investment company’s mining operations in a diligent and sensitive manner. Our strategy 
is to ensure that relations with national, regional and local authorities, the local and broader community, 
and the environment are led by transparency in our commercial activities, the appropriate degree of 
interaction with stakeholders and maximum responsibility and accountability in all our operations. 2019 
was particularly important to our communities as we initiated significant changes to mining operations. 
The Company launched a meaningful clean water programme to allow members of the local community 
to source clean drinking water.  We also participated in community support programmes to help feed 
members of the community. 
  
Sustainable Development  
  
EME is committed to achieving development that provides benefits to those geographical areas where 
we operate, without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs both 
economically and environmentally. EME will endeavour to achieve continual excellence in 
environmental performance, abiding by all expected environmental standards and respecting the 
environment and our neighbours.  
  
Our People  
  
EME operates within a favourable framework for labour relations based on a non-discriminatory, equal 
opportunities employment system, that respects diversity and facilitates communication at all levels of 
the Group. The Group provides a healthy and safe working environment by implementing the best 
available international practices and procedures. 
  
Communication  
  
EME promotes and encourages the establishment of broad communication channels and continually 
seeks opportunities for communication with its stakeholders to ensure that business objectives remain 
in tune with social needs and expectations. The Company will seek to provide relevant, transparent and 
accurate information about activities and encourage continuous improvement in this area. 
 
Risks 
 
Risk management is one of the core responsibilities of the Board and it is central to the decision-making 
process. The Board’s fundamental duties as to management are: 
 

• Assessing (quantitively and qualitatively) the principal risks to the Company.  Principal risks are 
those risks or combination of risks that could seriously affect the performance, future prospects 
or reputation of the Company; 

• Recognising and assessing emerging risks.  Emerging risks are those which have not yet 
occurred but are at an early stage and anticipated to increase in significance over the medium 
to long term time horizon; 

• Risk management oversight and promotion of a risk mitigation culture. 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties 

The Group operates in an uncertain environment and is subject to a number of risk factors. The Directors 
have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including those that 
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. They consider that the following 
are the principal risk factors that could materially and adversely affect the Group’s future operating 
results or financial position: 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STRATEGIC REPORT(continued) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
Deterioration in metal market in particular 
 
There is a risk that changes in the relevant law and legislation could have an adverse effect on the 
Group’s future performance, expected return and or feasibility of the project. 

 
The Group is also exposed to general economic risk, including changes in the economic outlook in its 
principal markets and government changes in industrial, fiscal, monetary or regulatory policies. 
 
The Board continues monitoring developments in the market in order to adapt. The management team 
has wide-ranging expertise in mineral exploration which, together with a flexible cost structure, enable 
the Group to adapt its organisation to changes in circumstances. 

 
Funding risk 
 
Although the Group has sufficient working capital for at least 12 months from the date of this report, the 
Group may not be able to obtain additional financing as and when needed which could result in a delay 
or indefinite postponement of exploration and development activities.  
 
In common with many exploration entities, the Group will need to raise further funds in order to progress 
the Group from the exploration phase into feasibility and eventually into production of revenues. 
 
Dependence on key personnel 
 
The Company has a small management team and the loss of a key individual could have an adverse 
effect on the future of the Group’s business. The Group’s future success will also depend in large part 
upon its ability to attract and retain highly skilled personnel. There can be no assurance that the Group 
will be successful in attracting and retaining such personnel. 
 
The Group seek to create a workplace that attracts, retains and engages its workforce.  Efforts are also 
made to attract new talent and skilled people. 
 
Environmental risk 
 
There may also be unforeseen environmental liabilities resulting from both future or historic exploration 
or mining activities, which may be costly to remedy. In addition, potential environmental liabilities as a 
result of unfulfilled environmental obligations by the previous owners may impact the Group. If the Group 
is unable to fully remedy an environmental problem, it may be required to stop or suspend operations 
or enter into interim compliance measures pending completion of the required remedy. 
 
Environmental management systems are in place to mitigate environmental hazard risks. The Group 
uses advisors with specialist knowledge in mining and related environmental management for reducing 
the impacts of environmental risk. 
 
Estimates of mineral reserves and resources 
 
Mineral resources are estimates and no assurance can be given that any particular grade or tonnage 
will be realised or that they will be converted into ore reserves or will ever qualify as a commercially 
mineable (or viable) deposit which can be legally and economically exploited. As a result of these 
uncertainties, there can be no assurance that any potential mineral resources defined by the Group’s 
exploration programmes will result in profitable commercial mining operations. 
 
The Directors are confident that they have put in place a strong management team capable of dealing 
with the above issues as they arise.  
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STRATEGIC REPORT(continued) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 
 
Business Risks 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STRATEGIC REPORT(continued) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 
 
Corporate Responsibility 
 
We have defined the scope of our Group’s responsible business practices as falling within the following 
key focus areas: 
 
• Health and Safety – ensuring the safety and well-being of our staff 
• Environment – managing our environmental impact areas of waste, energy and water 
• Employees – supporting our people to develop and flourish within the business 
• Community – positive interaction with the communities in which we operate 
• Ethical Standards – operating to the highest ethical standards 
 
We remain committed to ensuring these activities become embedded in how we operate and contribute 
towards the success of our business. This includes not only identifying and managing business risk but 
exploring opportunities to add value to the business. 
 
 
Key Performance Indicators 
 
EME uses multiple strategic key performance indicators (“KPI”s) to measure our financial and non-
financial performance. The KPIs, to be utilised from 2020 following completion of our wash plant  
development, are linked to our strategic objectives to help assist in the measure of business 
performance. The following ten measures are considered by management to be some of the most 
important in evaluating the overall performance of the Group year on year. 
 

1. Feed Tonnes (tonnes mined) 
2. Ore Production (Coltan)  
3. Tantalum Concentration % 
4. Operational Hours  
5. Operational Expense  
6. Equipment Usage  
7. Water Usage  
8. Power Usage  
9. Incident Rate (Accidents, Insurance Claims) 
10. Hectares under License (Exploration & Mining) 

 
 
Business Review 
 
The Company announced the completion of the EME Ltd purchase agreement and its intention to 
acquire the necessary capital equipment to advance the Musasa or Kuaka joint-venture project in June 
2019. The initial fundraising was completed shortly thereafter, in August 2019, and the 25 tonnes per 
hour wash plant was purchased and shipped from China while the HEM equipment (an excavator, front 
loader, and dump truck) was acquired and shipped from South Africa.  The HEM equipment arrived at 
the Kuaka site in early November and initial wash plant components arriving on site at the end of the 
year. Site development work began in November, however we experienced unusually very heavy 
seasonal rains resulting in some delays to the plant foundation work. Site development originally 
planned to conclude in April 2020, continued from the end of 2019 and throughout the first half of 2020. 
Construction and development has been delayed in 2020 due to the COVID-19 restrictions on 
movement of goods and services, and the ability of operate efficiently. By early September 2020 the 
processing plant construction was completed and is now currently undergoing commissioning. 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STRATEGIC REPORT(continued) 

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

 
 
Results for the Year and Dividends 
The total comprehensive income attributable to the equity holders of the Group for the year was a loss 
of £1,027,828 (2018: loss of £220,896). 
 
The Company paid no dividend during the year (2018: £nil). 
 
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis 
of accounting in preparing the financial statements. 
 

Future Developments 
 
Mining operations begin at the Musasa site in cooperation with our local partners, the Kuaka Cooperative 
in 2020 following the September 2020 commissioning of the processing plant. We intend to focus on 
surface mining of the ore bodies and the optimisation of the processing plant. These revenues are 
important to the company’s future as they will fund future exploration work. 
 
Additionally, we intend to begin exploration work at the Huye JV site with drone mapping, demarcation 
of a focussed exploration area, and surface geological work ideally starting by year-end. 
 
Importantly, we shall seek to extend the existing license and apply for additional ground for future 
exploration. 
 

Section 172 Statement  
 
The Directors are well aware of their duty under s.172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in the way 
which they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the 
benefit of its members as a whole and, in doing so, to have regard (amongst other matters) to:  
 
• the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;  
• the interests of the Company’s employees;  
• the need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others; 
• the impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment; 
• the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and  
• the need to act fairly between members of the Company.  
 
The Board recognises that the long-term success of the Group requires positive interaction with its 
stakeholders. Positive engagement with stakeholders will enable our stakeholders to better understand 
the activities, needs and challenges of the business and enable the Board to better understand and 
address relevant stakeholder views which will assist the Board in its decision making and to discharge 
its duties under Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006.  
 
In the following section we identify our key stakeholders, how we engage with them and key activities 
we have undertaken during the period in question. 
 
Shareholders 
 
Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc engages with its shareholders. Shareholder support is vital to our 
success and we seek out and listen to shareholders’ opinions.  We have an open dialogue with our 
shareholders from direct conversation, meetings, and via digital platforms and social media. We also 
utilise a dedicated financial and investor public relations platform as well as social media to provide 
video, audio, and photos of our activities and our progress.  Shareholder feedback is communicated to 
the Board and the views of shareholders considered in our decision making.  
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STRATEGIC REPORT(continued) 

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

Colleagues 
 
Our team is made up of a diverse set of individuals critical to our success. Regular and active 
communications amongst the teams allows us to balance the Company’s success with individual health, 
safety, well-being, and career development. In 2019 the team actively communicated on a regular basis 
including two site conferences to develop and support frank and direct colleague communications. 
Additionally, the Company announced two joint-venture operations with new partners over the course 
of the year; the Company includes our joint-venture partners in our colleague communications. 
 
Suppliers 
 
We have strong relationships with our suppliers who have been incredibly supportive and patient through 
a time of significant strategic change.  This support has allowed longstanding relationships to develop 
and become mutually beneficial. We engage with suppliers to optimise the delivery of key supplies, 
especially capital equipment. The Board recognises that relationships with suppliers are important to 
the Company’s long-term success and is briefed on supplier feedback and issues on a regular basis. 
 
Government and Regulators  
 
We engage with the government and regulators through a range of industry consultations, direct 
meetings and conferences to communicate our views to policy makers relevant to our business. Key 
areas of focus are compliance with laws and regulations, environmental well-being and health and 
safety. The Board is updated on legal and regulatory developments and takes these into account when 
considering future actions. Regulatory communications occur primarily via our subsidiary, Eastinco 
Limited. We engage in regular dialogue with the Rwanda Mines Petroleum & Gas Board (RMB) as our 
key regulatory interface.  Additionally, the Company engages with the Rwanda Environment 
Management Authority (REMA) and other national, regional, and local government departments to 
ensure compliance with the laws and regulatory rules. 
 
Communities 
 
We are pleased to engage with the communities in which we operate to build understanding and trust. 
Our operations at present are joint-venture operations with partnerships involving long standing local 
community partners. We recognise that we have a significant impact on the local communities and that 
local issues are important. The Board focuses on opportunities to support local causes and issues. We 
combine this with creating opportunities to recruit and develop local peoples’ careers. Our community 
involvement includes working with local government, community and organisations to leverage our 
presence to improve local health and safety. The key issues and themes across local communities are 
reported back to the Board on a regular basis. In particular we consider the long term environmental 
impact of decisions both locally and nationally with a view to long term land reclamation and the 
improvement of use. 
 
Customers 
 
We seek to mine utilising mechanisation and industrial methods to deliver high quality products. Our 
ambition is to deliver significant quantities of best-in-class product to our trade customers. We intend to 
build strong lasting relationships with our trade customers and spend considerable time with them to 
understand the market, their needs, and views. We use this knowledge to inform our decision-making, 
for example, our final tantalum product will initially be sold in-country, where a number of international 
metal buying companies are established and have operated for a number of years.  This will allow for 
us to build quantities to sufficient levels prior to foreign sales and off take agreements. 
 
Advisors 
 
The Company seeks the advice of its legal and/or corporate advisor in communications and decision 
making with all stakeholders. Our advisors are critical in our communications with compliance and 
regulatory bodies including the Aquis Stock Exchange, the FCA, the Takeover Panel.   
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STRATEGIC REPORT(continued) 

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

Working Example 
 
In July 2019, the Company agreed to the purchase of Eastinco Limited.  Below outline the strategic 
considerations and outcomes of this acquisition in relation to our stakeholders. 
 

Considerations  Outcomes/Impacts 
Shareholders – The Board considered the strategic fit, 
financial merits and valuation of Eastinco Limited as well as 
our ability to successfully integrate the company over a longer 
period of time. 

The Board concluded that there was a strong investment 
rationale and a good strategic fit and the deal should deliver 
attractive returns over the long-term. 
 

Colleagues – The Board considered the retention and 
incentivisation of the key employees.  Also the Board 
considered the ability of the management teams to cooperate 
successfully to achieve the targeted goals. 

The Board determined that the two companies were culturally 
aligned and the addition of Eastinco Limited’s operational 
expertise would enhance the value proposition of the PLC. 
The Board was satisfied that the combined entities would 
have the skills to deliver the stated project objectives. 
 

Suppliers – The Board considered existing suppliers and the 
capabilities of new suppliers to provide the required capital 
equipment to support the project and maintain the larger 
company presence. 
 

The Board was satisfied that the existing supply chain and the 
new supply chain could deliver sufficiently on demands 
subject to adequate planning and sufficient communication. 

Government & Regulators – The Board considered the 
acquisition and the nature of the acquisition with respect to 
the Takeover Code and UK Company law. The Board 
considered the ongoing requirements of Eastinco Limited and 
the ability of management to maintain adherence. 

The Board was satisfied following communications with the 
regulators that the Company could abide by the regulatory 
requirement necessary to effect the acquisition. Further 
following conversations with the Board of Eastinco Limited the 
Board was satisfied that the subsidiary could maintain active 
and positive communication and adherence to regulatory 
requirements. 
 

Communities – The Board considered the impact on the 
community in Rwanda from the project proceeding. 

The Board was satisfied that the acquisition would allow for 
increased positive interactions with local communities and 
determined that the joint-venture relationships established by 
Eastinco Limited allowed for a positive and productive 
relationship to prosper. 
 

Advisors – The Board considered if it had sufficient advice to 
proceed with the acquisition giving due consideration to the 
capabilities of its advisors and the size and nature of the 
acquisition. 

The Board concluded that subject to a fundraising to fund the 
purchase, including advisory fees, and operations of the 
subsidiary that it made sense to proceed and that the advisors 
had sufficient expertise.  The Board engaged local counsel to 
assist in the acquisition. Further the Board determined that the 
Company needed to produce a circular with the assistance of 
the advisors to distributed to shareholders directly, and to the 
market generally via the Company website, and various other 
platforms. 
 

Customers – The Board considered the underlying market 
for tantalum and the structure and nature of the tantalum 
market in Rwanda, including the ability to freely convert any 
potential currencies. The Board also considered the Dodd-
Frank Act and the need to demonstrate adherence to supply 
chain traceability. 

The Board concluded the acquisition of a company with no 
sales, but negotiated joint-venture agreements would allow for 
the satisfactory delivery of product to potential customers. The 
Board recognised that the governance structure would enable 
us to better leverage Company-wide capabilities of capital-
raising and project development would allow for the 
successful completion of the project and would benefit 
customers over the long-term. 
 

 

 

 

Director 
08 October 2020 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc   
DIRECTORS' REPORT 

 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
31 December 2019.  
 
General Information 
 
The Company is a public limited company which is quoted on Aquis Exchange and is incorporated and 
domiciled in the UK.  The address of its registered office is The Finsgate, 5-7 Cranwood Street, London 
EC1V 9EE. 
 
The registered number of the company is 07496976. 
 
Substantial Interests 
 
As at 31 December 2019, the significant shareholders of the Company were as follows:  
 

Shareholder Holding Holding % 

 Concert Party (Bray, Hogan, Knoef, Staten)                 69,901,584  19% 
 Spreadex Limited                 58,731,000  16% 
 The Bank Of New York (Nominees) Limited                 52,521,145  15% 
 Jim Nominees Limited                 27,082,596  7% 
 Edlin Holdings Ltd                 24,000,000  7% 
 Dartington Portfolio Nominees Limited                 20,000,000  6% 
 Mr Daniel L Hogan                 18,000,000  5% 
 Mr Stephan C M Knoef                 18,000,000  5% 
 James Kreitman                 15,700,000  4% 
 Peel Hunt Holdings Limited                 14,825,893  4% 
 First Names Trust Company (Isle Of Man) Limited                 13,324,000  4% 
 Summerhill Trust Company (Isle Of Man) Limited                 12,413,260  3% 

 
 
Beneficial Interest in Employee Benefit Trust 
 
The company has a beneficial interest in its own shares which have been acquired during the year 2018 
through a nominee company. The shares are held in an Employees Benefit Trust (The Eastinco EBT) 
for the benefit of its employees. This is intended to constitute an employee’s share scheme within the 
meaning of the section 1166 of the Companies Act 2006. The shares are held by IQ-EQ, formerly First 
Names Trust Company (Isle of Man) Limited and total 13,324,000 as noted in the above table. The 
shares have nominal value of £133,240 and represents 4% of the called up share capital of the company.  
To date options to purchase 13,324,000 of the shares have been granted to current and previous 
directors under share option agreements as disclosed in the note 17 of the financial statements.  
 
Directors and Directors' Interests 
 
The Directors who served in office since the beginning of the financial period are shown 
below: 
S J Retter* 
D Marais  
C Bray*    
M Staten*  
N Nelson (resigned 21 June 2019) 
 
*Directors Bray and Staten are members of a management "Concert Party” holding 69,885,000 ordinary 
shares of 1 pence or 19.35% of the outstanding share capital. Simon Retter holds 2,000,000 ordinary 
shares of 1 pence. 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
        YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 
Following the conversion of 15,905,500 warrants as disclosed in note 22 the concert party now holds 
88,807,084 shares in the enlarged company, which represents 21.2% of the enlarged company. 
 
Details of the Directors’ fees are given in note 4 to the financial statements. In addition, the Directors 
were issued with share options. Share options disclosures are in note 17. 
 
As at the date of this report the interests of the directors in 1p ordinary shares of the company are as 
follows.  
 
 

Director Ordinary 
Shares 

Options in the 
EBT Scheme 

Total(Percentage 
of total issued 
share capital) 

% 

M Staten 1,576,500,000  -   1,576,500,000 4.36% 
S J Retter 1,166,362 2,000,000 3,166,362 0.01% 
D Marais 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 0.02% 
C Bray* - - - - 
Edlin Holidings Limited*  1,800,000,000 - 1,800,000,000 4.98% 

 
*Charles Bray is deemed to have control over Edlin Holdings by the Takeover panel and as such Edlin 
Holdings limited is a related party in relation to Charles Bray Director Holdings. 
 
Executive Directors 
 
Simon Retter started his career at Deloitte & Touche LLP (now known as Deloitte LLP), where he 
qualified as a Chartered Accountant specialising in corporate finance transactions. He has been 
instrumental in setting up several private and listed companies including Zaim Credit Systems plc, a 
fintech business as well as Vale Group International Ltd, an acquisition vehicle targeting the financial 
services sector. Simon has undertaken numerous IPO’s and Reverse Takeovers and has a wealth of 
public market experience. He currently holds the position of Chief Financial Officer of AIM quoted mine 
development company, Horizonte Minerals Plc as well as various other board positions on listed 
companies across a broad range of industries. Simon holds the position of Finance Director of SulNOx 
Group plc which has developed an innovative fuel conditioner to reduce harmful emissions from diesel 
and HFO combustion engines. 
 
Charles Bray has enjoyed a  30+ year in securities trading and capital markets with a focus on small 
and mid-sized companies. In his most recent role at Astin Capital Management Limited, Charles worked 
to provide funding and investment for SME listed businesses as well as acting as an investor creditor 
representative. Since raising capital for Eastinco Mining and Exploration plc in 2019 Charles has acted 
as the Executive Chairman of the company and led the company's efforts to fund the  development of 
its industrial operations in Rwanda.  Charles is also a partner in several U.S. real estate and private 
equity investment companies. 

Mike Staten is a long standing investor and supporter of Equatorial Mining & Exploration Plc. Until 2017, 
Mike was employed as the Head of Trading at Darwin Strategic, which provides finance and advisory 
support for a portfolio of small quoted companies. During 2011/2012 Mike collaborated with Charles 
Bray as a director of Astin Capital and the professional relationship enjoyed by Charles and Mike will be 
to the good of the Company as it proceeds with its acquisition and investment strategy. 
 
Devon Marais is a South African national and group managing partner in the Reba Group of companies. 
Reba Group builds, finances, and commercialises high-profile technologies in Africa. Reba’s portfolio 
spans a range of business segments including mining, renewable energy, agri-tech and real 
estate.  Devon joined the board as a director and Head of Acquisitions of ARQ Minerals Pty Ltd. ("ARQ") 
a Reba subsidiary company which, through Reba, took an interest in the Eastinco Mining and 
Exploration plc in June 2018. 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
        YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 
 
Payments to Suppliers 
 
The Company does not follow any code or standard on payment practice as the terms and conditions 
for its business transactions are agreed with individual suppliers. Payment is then made in accordance 
with those terms, subject to other terms and conditions being met by the supplier. 
 
 
Financial risk management  
 
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
 
• Liquidity risk 
• Market price risk 
• Interest rate risk: cash flow interest rate risk 
• Foreign exchange risk 
• Credit risk 
 
Further details on the financial risks and suitable risk management system put in place by the 
management are in note 15. 
 
 
Events after the reporting period 
 
Details of significant events that have occurred since 31 December 2019 are provided in note 22 to 
these financial statements.  
 

Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Group has not yet earned 
revenues and is still in the exploration phase of its business. The operations of the Group are currently 
financed from funds raised from shareholders. In common with many exploration entities, the Group will 
need to raise further funds in order to progress the Group from the exploration phase into feasibility and 
eventually into production of revenues. 
 
The Directors are reasonably confident that funds will be forthcoming as and when they are required as 
described in the Chairman’s Statement on page 1. However, the Group has cash and cash equivalents 
of £246,000 at 31 December 2019 and the Directors are of the view this is sufficient to fund the Group’s 
committed expenditure over the next 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, 
without raising funds in this period.  
 
As part of their assessment, the Directors have prepared cash-flow forecasts on the basis that cost 
reduction and deferral measures are implemented over the going concern period as a result of the 
current worldwide COVID 19 pandemic. The Directors have agreed, if circumstances require, to defer  
payment of their fees until such time as adequate funding is received and if necessary, scale back 
discretionary exploration activity.  
 

Disclosure of Information to Auditors 

So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors 
are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order 
to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors 
are aware of that information. 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
        YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
Reappointment of Auditors  
 
Jeffreys Henry LLP has confirmed that it is willing to continue in office, and in accordance with section 
489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution to reappoint it as the auditor will be proposed at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
 
This report was approved by the Board on 08 October 2020 and signed on its behalf. 
 
 
 
 
M Staten 
Director 
08 October 2020   
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and regulations and have elected to prepare the financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), as adopted by the European 
Union (“EU”).  
 
The financial statements are required to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and 
of the profit or loss of the Group for that year.  
 
In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:  
 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and  
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 

that the Group will continue in business.  
 

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the Company’s website; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve 
the consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any 
changes that may have occurred in the accounts since they were initially presented on the website.  
Legislation governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from one 
jurisdiction to another. 
 

• the directors’ report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and 
the position of the Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they 
face. 

 
By Order of the Board 
 
 
 
 
M Staten 
Director 
08 October 2020 
 
  

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and 
explain the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time its financial position. 
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the 
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
 

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on page 11, confirm that, to the best of 
their knowledge: 
• the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit 
or loss of the Group; 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc  
 

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF  
EASTINCO MINING AND EXPLORATION PLC 

 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc (the ‘Parent Company’) 
and its subsidiary (together the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2019, which comprise the 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Company Statements of 
Financial Position, Consolidated statement of Changes in Equity, Company Statement of Changes in 
Equity, Consolidated and Company Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.  
 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is 
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European 
Union, and, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
In our opinion:  

• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and Parent 
Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the Group’s and Parent Company’s loss for 
the year then ended;  

• the Group and Parent Company’s financial statements have been properly prepared in 
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and 

• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2006. 

 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs UK) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Material uncertainty relating to going concern 
We draw your attention to the primary statements within these financial statements, which indicates that 
the group incurred a loss after tax of £934,000 and had net cash outflows from operating activities of 
£840,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019.  
 
We further draw attention to note 2.4 in the group financial statements, which indicates that the group 
will need to raise additional finance in order to continue with its exploration programmes and to meet its 
recurring expenditure, and that, although the group has been successful in the past in raising additional 
finance, there can be no assurance that the funding required by the group will be made available to it 
when needed or, if such funding were to be available, that it would be offered on reasonable terms. 
 
As stated in note 2.4, these conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in note 2.4, indicate that 
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt over the group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue and significant doubt over the group’s longer term ability to continue in operation 
and meet its liabilities as they fall due.  
 
Whilst there is a global impact of the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group has been able to operate during 
the pandemic to date. It remains difficult to assess reliably whether there will be any material disruption 
in the future which could adversely impact the group’s forecast. 
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued…) 
 
Key audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of 
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest 
effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of 
the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit. 
 

• Carrying value of goodwill 
• Carrying value of investment in subsidiary and inter-company debtors 
• Going concern assumption  

 
These are explained in more detail below. 
 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
Carrying value of goodwill 
We have identified a risk that the goodwill 
arising on acquisition was not accounted for 
correctly on initial recognition in accordance with 
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, and further that 
this goodwill may be impaired. 

The Group recognised goodwill as a result of the 
business combination during the year with a 
carrying value of £2,168k as at 31 December 
2019. 

 

 

Our audit procedures: 
• For the initial recognition, we reviewed the sale 

and purchase agreement and verified that the fair 
value of the consideration was correctly 
calculated. We also performed a recalculation to 
ensure the business combination was correctly 
accounted for. 
 

• For the impairment test, we checked 
management’s assumptions and sensitivities in 
assessing the forecast profits of the subsidiary. 
We compared these forecasts to similar 
companies operating in the same industry. We 
also applied an appropriate price earnings ratio 
based on industry averages to forecast EBITDA. 
 

• We considered whether management had 
exercised any bias in assumptions used or the 
outputs produced in the valuations prepared. 

Carrying value of investment in subsidiary 
and inter-company debtors (parent company 
only) 
We identified a risk that the investment of the 
parent company (Eastinco Mining and 
Exploration Plc) in its subsidiary (Eastinco Ltd) 
and amounts receivable, may be impaired. 

The parent company has an investment in its 
subsidiary with a carrying value of £2,100k and 
amounts receivable of £792k as at 31 December 
2019. 

Management’s assessment of the recoverable 
amount of investments in subsidiary and 
recovery of receivables requires estimation and 
judgement around assumptions used. Changes 
to assumptions could lead to material changes 
in the estimated recoverable amount, impacting 
the value of investment in the subsidiary and 
impairment charges. 

 

Our audit procedures: 
• For the impairment test, we checked 

management’s assumptions and sensitivities in 
assessing forecast performance of the subsidiary. 
We carried out a review of comparative 
companies operating in the same industry to 
assess the reasonableness of the forecasts 
prepared by the Directors; 
 

• We considered whether management had 
exercised any bias in assumptions used or the 
outputs produced in the valuations prepared. 
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Going concern assumption  
The Group is dependent upon its ability to 
generate sufficient cash flows to meet continued 
operational costs and hence continue trading; 
however, the Group is currently loss making as 
yet is yet to commence trading and generate 
revenue. 
The going concern assumption is dependent on 
future capital raises. 
The COVID-19 pandemic may create a great 
deal of uncertainty regarding the future outlook 
of the business. 

Our audit procedure: 
• We obtained and reviewed the Directors’ 

assessment, including challenging the liquidity 
position; 
 

• We checked the robustness of the Directors’ 
business planning process. 
 

• We checked the key assumptions. 
 

• We assessed the sensitivities of the underlying 
assumptions. 
 

• Considered the Group’s historic ability to raise 
funds. 

We have also enquired with management as to the 
impact of COVID-19 and the steps being taken to limit 
the impact of the pandemic on the business.  
 
We have reviewed forecasts and latest bank balances to 
ensure the group can cover its overheads. The forecasts 
have been stress tested by management and the 
assumptions have been challenged. However, as noted 
in 2.4, the group will need to raise additional finance in 
order to continue with its exploration programmes and to 
meet its recurring expenditure, and that, although the 
group has been successful in the past in raising 
additional finance, there can be no assurance that the 
funding required by the group will be made available to it 
when needed or, if such funding were to be available, 
that it would be offered on reasonable terms. 
 
Due to the risks outlined above, a material uncertainty 
relating to going concern is highlighted in the auditor’s 
report.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued…) 

Our application on materiality  
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative 
thresholds for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the 
scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial 
statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and 
in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole. 

Based on our professional judgment, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole 
as follows: 

 

 Group financial statements Company financial statements 

Overall materiality £51,000 (2018: n/a) £37,000 (2018: £22,000). 

How we determined it 5% of net loss 5% of net loss 

Rationale for benchmark applied 

 

We believe that this is the most 
appropriate basis due to the fact that 
the Group is yet to commence 
trading and generate revenue, but 
has incurred significant restructuring 
and setup costs. 

We believe that this is the most 
appropriate basis due to the fact 
that the Company has incurred 
significant restructuring and setup 
costs. 

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our 
overall Group materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components was between £15,000 
and £37,000. 

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our 
audit above £2,550 (2018: £1,100) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, 
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons. 
 
An overview of the scope of our audit 
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material 
misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective 
judgments, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions 
and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also addressed the 
risk of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of 
bias by the directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud. 
 
How we tailored the audit scope 

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion 
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, 
the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which they operate. 

The Group financial statements are a consolidation of two reporting units, comprising the Group’s 
operating business and holding company. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 18B56739-74D6-415C-86B5-54247F3C2D0E



 

19 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued…) 
 
We performed audits of the complete financial information of Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc and 
the remaining subsidiary Eastinco Ltd. The subsidiary was individually financially significant and 
accounted for 28% of the Group’s absolute loss before tax (i.e. the sum of the numerical values without 
regard to whether they were profits or losses for the relevant reporting units). 

The group engagement team performed all audit procedures, with the exception of the audit of Eastinco 
Ltd which was performed by a component auditor in Rwanda. 

Our involvement in the work of the component auditor in Rwanda included regular communication with 
a formal meeting arranged following the performance of the procedures. We have been granted full 
access to the working papers and conducted a review of them. 

 
Other information 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our 
Opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing do, consider whether the other information is materiality inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If 
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to 
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 

 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit,  
• the information given in the Directors’ Report and Strategic Report for the financial year for 

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and  
• the Directors’ Report and Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable 

legal requirements.  
 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its environment 
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report 
or the Directors’ Report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate 
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 
returns; or 

• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
Responsibilities of Directors 
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 14, the Directors 
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and Parent 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued…) 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  
 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statement is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 
 
www.frc.ork.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
 
Other matters which we are required to address  
We were appointed by the board of directors on 21 January 2011 to audit the financial statements. Our 
total uninterrupted period of engagement is 9 years, covering the periods ending 31 December 2011 to 
31 December 2019. 
 
The audit has been designed to detect all material irregularities, including fraud. We believe our tests 
are sufficient in this regard. The engagement team has remained alert to any indication of fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.  
 
The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or 
Parent Company and we remain independent of the Group and Parent Company in conducting our audit.  
 
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee. 
 
Use of this report 
This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed.  
 
 
 
 
Sudhir Rawal 
SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR  
 
For and on behalf of Jeffreys Henry LLP, statutory auditor  
 
 
Finsgate 
5-7 Cranwood Street 
London 
EC1V 9EE 
United Kingdom 
Date:     October 2020 
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration plc 
  
  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 

 Note Group   
  Year to Year to  

 
 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18    £'000 £'000  

Total revenue  - -  
  

 
  

Administrative expenses               (892)               (140)  
Provision against loan advanced to related party 5 (34)                 (90)  
Provision for impairment of investment                   -                      (2)  
Total operating expenses               (926)               (232)  

     
Total operating loss               (926)               (232)  

 
 

  
 

Interest income                   -                     11   
Interest payable and similar charges 6                  (8)                      -     
Loss before tax               (934)               (221)  

 
 

  
 

Tax expense 7                  -                      -     
  

   
Loss after tax               (934)               (221)  

     
Other comprehensive income     
     
Loss on translation of foreign operations                 (94)                   -     
Total comprehensive loss for the year             (1,028)               (221)  
     
Loss per share 8 

 
  

Basic and Diluted  loss per share (pence)              (0.47)              (0.25)  

* Comparative weighted average number of shares is adjusted for the impact of the share consolidation  
 
 
All activities relate to continuing operations.  
 
The notes on pages 27 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc      
 

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

  Group   Company  
 Notes 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 

  £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 
Non-current assets       
Investment  9                       

-    
                   

-     2,100 
                   

-    

Goodwill  
10 

                 
2,168  

                   
-     

                       
-    

                   
-    

Property, plant and equipment  
11 

                    
441  

                   
-     

                       
-    

                   
-    

Total non-current assets                   
2,609  

                   
-     

                  
2,100  

                   
-    

       
Current assets       
Trade and other receivables  

12 
                    

133  
                    

4   
                     

852  
                    

4 
Cash and cash equivalents                      

246  
                    

2  
                     

232  
                    

2  

Total current assets                      
379  

                    
6   

                  
1,084  

                    
6  

       
Total assets                   

2,988  
                    

6   
                  

3,184  
                    

6  

       
       

Equity and liabilities       
Share capital 16                  

3,613  
             

1,126   
                  

3,613  
             

1,126  
Share premium  

16 
                 

1,835  
             

1,835   
                  

1,835  
             

1,835  
Share based compensation reserve  

17 
                 

1,348  
             

1,348   
                  

1,348  
             

1,348  
Interest in shares in EBT  

17 
                  

(133) 
               

(133)  
                   

(133) 
               

(133) 
Translation reserve                      

(94) 
                   

-     
                       

-    
                   

-    

Accumulated losses                 
(5,254) 

            
(4,328)  

                
(5,146) 

            
(4,328) 

Other reserves                        
97  

                   
-     

                       
97  

                   
-    

Merger relief reserve                    
1,200  

                   
-     

                  
1,200  

                   
-    

Total equity                   
2,612  

               
(152)  

                  
2,814  

               
(152) 

       
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables  

13 173 
                

158   
                     

167  
                

158  

Total current liabilities                      
173  

                
158   

                     
167  

                
158  

       
Non-current liabilities        
Financial liabilities    

14 
                    

203  
                   

-     
                     

203  
                   

-    

Total non-current liabilities                      
203  -  

                     
203                  - 

       
Total Equity and liabilities                   

2,988 
                    

6   
                  

3,184  
                    

6  
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc      
 

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued) 
 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
These financial statements were approved by the Board on 08 October 2020 and signed on their 
behalf by 
 
 
      
Chairman      Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Company number : 07496976 
 
The notes on pages 27 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration plc 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
Group 

 

 Share  
capital 

Share 
premium 

Share-based 
compensation 

reserve 

Interest 
in 

shares 
in EBT 

Translation 
reserve 

Other 
Reserves  

Merger 
relief 

reserve 
Accumulated 

losses Total 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
          

At 1 January 2018            
693  

    
   1,536  

           
    1,349  

         
(133) 

           
     -    

        
    -    

       
   -    

   
  (4,107) 

    
(662) 

          
Loss for the year               

-    
         

    -    
              

      -    
             

-    
            

    -    
        

    -    
 

         -    
    

    (221) 
    

(221) 
Other 
comprehensive loss 

              
-    

           
  -    

                
    -    

             
-    

       
         -    

         
   -    

        
  -    

        
    -    

         
-    

          
Transactions with 
owners 

         

Share based 
compensation 

              
-    

          
   -    

                  
  (1) 

             
-                   -               -             -               -            

(1) 
Exercise of 
warrants 

             
69  

           
  -    

                
    -    

             
-                   -               -             -               -            

69  
Conversion of 
unsecured loan 
note 

               
1  

           
 39  

                 
   -    

             
-                   -               -             -               -            

40  

Issue of new shares            
363  

         
 260  

                  
  -    

             
-                   -               -             -               -          

623  
At 31 December 
2018 

        
1,126  

     
  1,835  

              
 1,348  

         
(133)                -               -             -     

    (4,328) 
    

(152) 

          
At 1 January 2019         

1,126  
      

 1,835  
               

1,348  
         

(133) 
           

     -    
          

  -    
       

   -    
  

   (4,328) 
    

(152) 

Loss for the year               
-    

           
  -    

                  
  -    

             
-    

             
   -    

          
  -    

        
  -    

   
     (934) 

    
(934) 

Other 
comprehensive loss 

              
-    

            
 -                       -                 

-    
           

   (94) 
 

- 
 

- 
      

      -    
      

(94) 
Transactions with 
owners          

Other reserves               
-    

            
 -    

                 
   -    

             
-    

          
      -    

         
105  

      
    -    

 
-  

      
105  

Transfer from other 
reserve to 
accumulated losses 

               
 

-    

            
 

 -    

                 
 

   -    

              
 

-    

             
 

   -    

 
 

(8) 

 
 

- 

 
 

8 

 
 

- 
Merger relief 
reserve  

              
-    

           
  -    

                 
   -    

             
-    

            
    -    

 
- 

    
1,200  

 
- 

   
1,200  

Issue of new shares         
2,487              -                       -                 

-    
            

    -    
 

- 
         

 -    
          

  -    
   

2,487  
At 31 December 
2019 

        
3,613  

      
 1,835  

              
 1,348  

         
(133) 

             
 (94) 

       
    97  

    
1,200  

 
    (5,254) 

   
2,612  
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration plc 
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
Company 

 

 Share  
capital 

Share 
premium 

Share-based 
compensation 

reserve 

Interest in 
shares in 

EBT 
Other 

Reserves  
Merger 

relief 
reserve 

Accumulated 
losses Total 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
         

At 1 January 2018              
693  

          
1,536  

                
1,349  

                      
(133) 

               
-    

                  
-    

   
     (4,107) 

    
(662) 

         
Loss for the year                 

-    
               

-                         -                              
-    

               
-    

                  
-    

       
    (221) 

    
(221) 

Other comprehensive 
loss 

                
-    

               
-                         -                              

-    
               

-    
                  

-    
         

       -    
         

-    
         

Transactions with 
owners 

        

Share based 
compensation 

                
-    

               
-    

                     
(1) 

                          
-    

               
-    

                  
-    

          
      -    

        
(1) 

Exercise of warrants                
69  

               
-                         -                              

-    
               

-    
                  

-    
              

  -    
        

69  
Conversion of unsecured 
loan note 

                 
1  

               
39                       -                              

-    
               

-    
                  

-    
              

  -    
        

40  
Issue of new shares              

363  
             

260                       -                              
-    

               
-    

                  
-    

              
  -    

      
623  

At 31 December 2018           
1,126  

          
1,835  

                
1,348  

                      
(133) 

               
-    

                  
-    

   
     (4,328) 

    
(152) 

         
At 1 January 2019           

1,126  
          

1,835  
                

1,348  
                      

(133) 
               

-    
                  

-    
      

  (4,328) 
    

(152) 

Loss for the year                 
-    

               
-                         -                              

-    
               

-    
                  

-    
         

  (826) 
    

(826) 
Other comprehensive 
loss 

                
-    

               
-                         -                              

-    
               

-    
                  

-    
            

    -    
         

-    
Transactions with 
owners         

Other reserves                 
-    

               
-                         -                              

-    
              

105  
                  

-    
            

-  
      

105  
Transfer from other 
reserve to accumulated 
losses  

                 
 

-    

                
 

-    

               
 

       -    

                           
 

-    

 
 

(8) 

 
 

- 

 
 

8 

 
 

- 
Merger relief reserve                  

-    
               

-                         -                              
-    

               
-    

            
1,200  

 
- 

   
1,200  

Issue of new shares           
2,487  

               
-                         -                              

-    
               

-    
                  

-    
            

    -    
   

2,487  

At 31 December 2019           
3,613  

          
1,835  

                
1,348  

                      
(133) 

              
97  

            
1,200  

       
 (5,146) 

   
2,814  

Reserves Description and purpose      
Share capital Amount of the contributions made by shareholders in return for the issue of shares. 
Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.   
Share-based compensation reserve Cumulative  fair  value  of  share  options  granted  and recognised as an expense in the 

Income Statement.  
Translation reserve  The translation reserve comprises translation differences arising from the translation of 

financial statements of the Group’s foreign entities into Sterling (£).  
Other reserves The other reserve comprises differences arising from the discounting of loan notes. 
Merger relief reserve The merger relief reserve comprises differences between the fair value and at par value 

of shares issued for the acquisition of subsidiary 
Interest  in  shares in  Employees Benefit 
Trust (EBT) 

The Company set up an Employees Benefit Trust on 6 March 2015 (the Equatorial EBT) 
for the benefit of its employees.  The funds advanced to acquire the shares have been 
accounted for under IFRS as a deduction arriving at shareholders' funds rather than as 
an asset. 

 
 
Accumulated losses Accumulated losses represents total losses.  

 
 

The notes on pages 27 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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Eastinco Mining and Exploration plc 
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
  Group   Company  

  
31-Dec-19 31-Dec-

18 
 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-

18 

  £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 

Cash flow from operating activities       

Profit/(loss) before tax  
               

(934) 
         

(221)  
           

(826) 
         

(221) 
Adjustments for:       

Depreciation  
                    

5               -                     -                 -    

Interest expense  
                    

8  
           

(11)  
                 

8  
           

(11) 

Interest income                     -                 -     
             

(33)              -    

Impairment of investments                     -    
              

2                   -    
              

2  

Provisions against loans  
                  

34  
            

89   
               

34  
            

89  

Foreign exchange (gains)/losses  
                    

2               -     
               

(1)              -    
Operating profit/(loss) before working 
capital changes  

               
(885) 

         
(140)  

           
(818) 

         
(140) 

Changes in working capital:       

(Increase) in trade & other receivables  
               

(150) 
           

(81)  
             

(84) 
           

(81) 

Increase in trade & other payables  
                

194  
            

65   
             

189  
            

65  

Net cash flow from operating activities  
               

(841) 
         

(156)  
           

(713) 
         

(156) 
Cash flow from investing activities       

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  
               

(237)              -                     -                 -    

Acquisition of subsidiary  
                

107               -                     -                 -    

Funds advanced to subsidiary pre acquisition  
               

(490)   
           

(490)  

Funds advanced to subsidiary post acquisition                     -                 -     
           

(274)              -    

Net cash flow from investing activities  
               

(620)              -     
           

(764)              -    
Cash flow from financing activities       

Net proceeds from issue of shares  
             

1,707  
          

149   
          

1,707  
          

149  

Net cash flow from financing activities  
             

1,707  
          

149   
          

1,707  
          

149  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 
                

246  
                

(7)                230 (7)               
Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the 
year  

                    
2  

              
9   

                 
2  

              
9  

Effect of exchange rate movements on cash  
                   

(2)              -                     -                 -    

Cash & cash equivalents at end of the year  
                

246  
              

2   
             

232  
              

2  
 
 
The notes on pages 27 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

1. General information 

Eastinco Mining and Exploration plc ("the Company") is an investment vehicle, focussed on African 
mineral resource investment opportunities. The Company operates through its 100% owned subsidiary, 
Eastinco Limited (“EME Ltd”), a Rwandan tantalum, tin and tungsten miner.   
 
The Company is a public limited company which is quoted on Aquis Exchange and is incorporated and 
domiciled in the UK.  The address of its registered office is Finsgate, 5-7 Cranwood Street, London 
EC1V 9EE. 
 
The registered number of the company is 07496976. 

2. Basis of preparation 

2.1 General 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS and IFRIC interpretations) (“IFRS”) in force at the reporting date, and their 
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) as adopted for use 
within the European Union. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value. 
 
The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand. 

2.2 Functional and presentation currency 
The financial information of the Group is presented in UK Sterling, which is also the functional currency 
of the Company. The individual financial statements of each of the Company’s wholly owned 
subsidiaries are prepared in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (its 
functional currency).	

2.3 Basis of consolidation 
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, Eastinco 
Limited following the business combination which took place on 15 October 2019 (see note 3). 	
 
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group 
obtains control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from 
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
investee.  
 
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, 
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an 
investee, including: 
 

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee; 
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and 
• The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights 

 
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that 
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated 
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that 
control ceases. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during 
the year are included in the Group Financial Statements from the date the Group gains control until the 
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.  
 
All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full. 
 
All the Group’s companies have 31 December as their year-end. Consolidated financial statements are 
prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

2.4 Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Group has not yet earned 
revenues and is still in the exploration phase of its business. The operations of the Group are currently 
financed from funds raised from shareholders. In common with many exploration entities, the Group will 
need to raise further funds in order to progress the Group from the exploration phase into feasibility and 
eventually into production of revenues. 
 
The Directors are reasonably confident that funds will be forthcoming as and when they are required 
and have received assurances to this effect as described in the Chairman’s Statement. However, the 
Group has cash and cash equivalents of £246,000 at 31 December 2019 and the Directors are of the 
view this is sufficient to fund the Group’s committed expenditure and maintain good title to the 
exploration licences over the next 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, 
without raising funds in this period.  
 
As part of their assessment, the Directors have prepared cash-flow forecasts on the basis that cost 
reduction and deferral measures are implemented over the going concern period as a result of the 
current worldwide COVID 19 pandemic. The Directors have agreed, if circumstances require, to defer  
payment of their fees until such time as adequate funding is received and if necessary, scale back 
discretionary exploration activity.  
 
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis 
of accounting in preparing the financial statements. 
 

2.5 Changes in accounting policies 
 
Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019 
 
The following standards, interpretations and amendments were adopted by the Group during the year: 
 
• IFRS 16 - Leases (effective 1 January 2019)  
• Amendments to IFRS 2 – classification and measurement of share based payments transactions (effective 1 

January 2019) 
• Interpretation to IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective 1 January 2019) 
• Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (effective 1 January 2019)  
 
The transition to these standards had no material impact on the Group. There were no long term 
operating leases in the Group as at the transition date for IFRS 16; as such no adjustments were 
made under this standard. Payments associated with short-term leases (12 months or less) and all 
leases of low value assets are recognised on a straight line basis as an expense in profit or loss. 
 
Standards, amendments and interpretations to published standards not yet effective 
 
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations, 
were in issue but not yet effective, and have not been early adopted by the Group: 
 
• Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (effective 1 January 2020) 
• IFRS 3 (amendments) Definition of a Business (effective 1 January 2020) 
• IAS 1 and IAS 8 (amendments) Definition of material (effective 1 January 2020) 
• IAS 1 (amendments) Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (effective 1 January 2022) 
 
The directors have reviewed the IFRS standards in issue which are effective for annual accounting years 
ending on or after the stated effective date. In their view, none of these standards would have a material 
impact on the financial statements of the Group. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

2.6 Segment reporting  
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that 
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical 
segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are 
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic 
environments. 
 
The Directors are of the opinion that the Group is engaged in a single segment of business being the 
exploration activity in one geographical area, being Rwanda. 
 

2.7 Accounting for interest in own shares held though an Employees Benefit Trust 
The funds advanced to acquire the shares have been accounted for under IFRS as a deduction arriving 
at shareholders' funds rather than as an asset. 

2.8 Financial instruments  
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of on entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another. 
 
(a) Financial assets 
 
Initial recognition and measurement  
 
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through OCI, or fair value through profit and loss.  
 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition that are debt instruments depends on the 
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing 
them. The Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.  
 
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, 
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the 
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an 
instrument level. 
 
The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets 
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
 
• Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
• Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt 

instruments) 
• Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and 

losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) 
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
 
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
 
This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost 
if both of the following conditions are met: 
 
• The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows; and  
• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

 
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method and are subject to impairment. Interest received is recognised as part of finance income in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Gains and losses are recognised in profit 
or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. The Group’s financial assets at amortised 
cost include trade receivables (not subject to provisional pricing) and other receivables. 
 
Derecognition  
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial 
position) when: 
 
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or  
• The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
Impairment of financial assets  
 
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held 
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows 
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted 
at an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale 
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 
 
The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit 
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with 
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of 
the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other 
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are recognised in two stages. For 
credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the 
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 
 
For trade receivables (not subject to provisional pricing) and other receivables due in less than 12 
months, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs, as permitted by IFRS 9. 
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead, recognises a loss allowance 
based on the financial asset’s lifetime ECL at each reporting date. 
 
The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. 
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal 
or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual 
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.  
 
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual 
cash flows and usually occurs when past due for more than one year and not subject to enforcement 
activity. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost 
are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
 
(b) Financial liabilities  
 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the 
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s 
financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans.
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
 
Loans and borrowings and trade and other payables 
 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and other payables are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised, 
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.  
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 
This category generally applies to trade and other payables. 
 
Derecognition  
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the associated obligation is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference 
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

2.9 Taxation 
Current taxes are based on the results shown in the financial statements and are calculated according 
to local tax rules, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 
 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, determined using tax rates that are 
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset or liability is realised or settled. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 
 

2.10 Property, plant and equipment  
Fixed assets are carried at cost less depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Where parts of 
an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of 
tangible fixed assets.  The Company assesses at each reporting date whether tangible fixed assets are 
impaired. 
 
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost less the 
estimated residual value of each asset, on a straight line basis, over their expected useful lives as 
follows: 
 
Mining equipment    10 years 
Computer equipment    3 years 
Land      not depreciated 
 
Software under development will commence depreciation once the software is available for use.  Prior 
to commencement of depreciation, expenditure will be capitalised but not depreciated. 
 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed if there is an indication of a 
significant change since last annual reporting date in the pattern by which the Company expects to 
consume an asset’s future economic benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

2.11 Intangible assets – Goodwill  
 
Intangible assets are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.  

2.12  Investment in subsidiary  
 
On 15 October 2019, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Eastinco Limited. Eastinco 
Limited was established on 6 February 2018 to conduct sustainable trading, mining and mineral 
development in the Rwandan mining sector. 
 
Eastinco Limited has established and maintains a strong local industry presence including a network of 
traders, miners and officials who provide valuable industry knowledge and insight. Additionally the 
founders have extensive knowledge and experience in the mining and commodity trade sector in Africa. 
 
The fair value of consideration of £2,100,000 was settled on the acquisition date by the issue of the 
Company’s Loan Notes with an aggregate value of £300,000 and the difference £1,800,000 by issue of 
the Company’s ordinary shares 60,000,000 at par. The fair value of these shares was £1,800,000 at 
0.03p, credited as fully paid.  

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions.  

2.14 Foreign currencies 
 
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at 
the Statement of Financial Position date.  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling 
at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.  Exchange differences are taken into account 
in arriving at the operating result. 
 
On consolidation of a foreign operation, assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the 
date of the Statement of Financial Position, income and expenses for each Statement of Comprehensive 
Income presented are translated at average exchange rates.  All resulting exchange differences shall 
be recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. Exchange rate used are as 
follows: 
Average rate - 1 RWF = 0.00086246 GBP 
Yearend rate - 1 RWF = 0.00083025 GBP 

2.15 Share-based payment arrangements 
The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity receives 
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value 
of employee services received in exchange for the grant of share options are recognised as an expense. 
The total expense to be apportioned over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value 
of the options granted: 
 
• including any market performance conditions;  
• excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions; and  
• including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. 
 
Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of 
options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the 
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting 
period the Group revises its estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

Share-based payment arrangements (continued) 
 
The Group recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a 
corresponding adjustment to equity. 
 
When options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly 
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium. 
 
The fair value of goods or services received in exchange for shares is recognised as an expense and 
included within administrative expenses. 

2.16 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates.  It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying 
the group’s accounting policies.  The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or 
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are 
disclosed below: 
 
a)  Recoverability of intangible assets 
 
The Group tests annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that the intangible 
assets might be impaired. 
 
Determining whether the intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the 
cash generating units to which the intangible assets belong.  Where impairment indicators are present, 
the Group is required to evaluate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit 
and the suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. 
 
The carrying value of Group’s only intangible assets which is Goodwill at 31 December 2019 is 
£2,168,486 (2018: £nil). 
 
b)  Share based payments 
 
The Group has made awards of options on its unissued share capital to certain Directors and employees 
as part of their remuneration package. 
 
The valuation of these options involved making a number of critical estimates relating to price volatility, 
future dividend yields, expected life of the options and interest rates.  These assumptions are described 
in more detail in note 17. 
 
The expense charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the year in relation to share 
based payments was £nil (2018: £nil). 
 
c) Going concern 
 
In their assessment of going concern, the Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts which require a 
number of judgments to be made including the Directors’ ability to access further financing and to 
implement cost saving and deferral measures, where necessary.  
 
The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast which assumes that the Group is not able to raise 
additional funds within the going concern period and if that was the case, the forecasts demonstrate that 
austerity measures can be implemented or significant project expenditure delayed to reduce the cash 
outflows to the minimal contracted and committed expenditure while also maintaining the Group’s 
licences and permits. Based on their assessment of the financial position, the Directors have a 
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operational existence for the next 
twelve months and continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing these financial 
statements. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 
 
d) Contingent consideration 
 
Deferred consideration of up to £8.1 million which was payable to the vendors depending on the financial 
performance of Eastinco limited during the period commencing on 1 October 2019 and ending on 30 
September 2020, is now valued at £nil due to the losses incurred by the company in the specified period.  
 
3. Business combination  

On 15 October 2019, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Eastinco Limited. Eastinco 
Limited was established on 6 February 2018 to conduct sustainable trading, mining and mineral 
development in the Rwandan mining sector. 
 
Eastinco Limited has established and maintains a strong local industry presence including a network of 
traders, miners and officials who provide valuable industry knowledge and insight. Additionally the 
founders have extensive knowledge and experience in the mining and commodity trade sector in Africa. 
 
The fair value of consideration of £2,100,000 was settled on the acquisition date by the issue of the 
Company’s Loan Notes with an aggregate value of £300,000 and the difference £1,800,000 by issue of 
the Company’s ordinary shares 60,000,000 at par. The fair value of these shares was £1,800,000 at 
0.03p, credited as fully paid.  
Deferred consideration of up to £8.1 million which was payable to the vendors depending on the financial 
performance of Eastinco Limited during the period commencing on 1 October 2019 and ending on 30 
September 2020, is now valued at £nil due to the losses incurred by the company in the specified period. 
 
The fair value of net liabilities of Eastinco Limited at time of acquisition was valued at (£175,000): 
 
 £’000 
Fair value of consideration 2,100 
Acquired net liabilities  175 
Goodwill recognised at acquisition 2,275 

4. Directors’ remuneration 

 Group   Company  
 Year to Year to  Year to Year to 

 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 
 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 

Salaries -                        
-    

(8)               -    (8) 
Directors’ fees and benefits 104                                        71   104                                       71  
National insurance contributions 105 -  105 - 
 209 63  209 63 

5. Other operating expenses 

Other operating expenses Group   Company  
 Year to Year to  Year to Year to 

 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 
 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 

Auditor's remuneration:                         
-    

 
      

-  Audit fee for Jeffreys Henry LLP                  17              14                    17              14  
-  Non-audit services                    1   1                      1   1  
Provision for impairment against cost of 
investment                    -                   2  

 
                   -                   2  

Provision against related party loan                 34                 90                   34                 90  
                 52            107                   52            107  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

6. Interest expense 

 Group   Company  
 Year to Year to  Year to Year to 

 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 
 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 

Interest expense  8                        
-    

-  8                        
-    

- 
 8 -  8 - 

Notional interest at a market rate of interest has been recognised on interest-free loan notes. The loan notes 
are being amortised over the loan term using a rate of 8% per annum, as disclosed in note 14. 

7. Income tax 

 2019 2018 
 £’000 £’000 
Current tax: 
Tax 

 
- 

 
- 

   
Total tax  - - 

 
Reconciliation of income tax         
   
Loss before tax  (934)  (221) 
UK corporation tax rate 
 

19% 19% 
Tax at expected rate of corporation tax 
 

(177) (42) 
   
Effects of:   
Expenditure not deductible for tax purposes    52          20  
Effect of overseas tax rates (13) -                           

-    Unutilised tax losses carried forward  138  22 
   
Total tax  - - 

The United Kingdom has a 19% tax rate and Rwanda has 30% tax rate. For the purposes of the 
reconciliation UK rate of corporation tax 19% (2018: 19%) is used.  
 
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of deductible temporary differences relating to 
certain losses carried forward at the year end, as there is insufficient evidence that taxable profits will 
be available in the foreseeable future against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.  
 
The unrecognised deferred tax asset for the Group was £265,929 (2018: £145,323) at a rate of 19%.  

8. Loss per share 

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on the following data: 
  2019 2018 
  £’000 £’000 
Earnings     
Loss from continuing operations for the year 
attributable to the equity holders of the Company  

                          
(934) 

                 
(221) 

Number of shares    
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 
the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share 

   
 200,814,390 87,582,476  

Basic and diluted earnings per share (pence)  (0.47) (0.25) 
 
* Comparative weighted average number of shares is adjusted for the impact of the share consolidation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

 
Loss per share (continued) 
 
The potential number of shares which could be issued following the exercise of options and warrants 
currently outstanding amounts to 19.2 Billion (see note 17). Dilutive earnings per share equals basic 
earnings per share as, due to the losses incurred, there is no dilutive effect from the existing share 
options and warrants. 

9. Investment 

 Investment in Subsidiaries 
 2019 2018 
 £’000 £’000 
Investment    
Cost:   
At the beginning of the year - 2 
Additions 2,100 - 
At 31 December  2,100 2 
   
Impairment - - 
Provision for impairment  - 2 
At 31 December  - 2 
   
Carrying Amount   
At 31 December  2,100 - 
Details of Subsidiaries are disclosed in note 18.    

 

10. Goodwill 

The goodwill represents assets that are not separately identifiable. The excess consideration over the  
net asset acquired of Eastinco Ltd. It is a Group only intangible asset.  
 2019 2018 
 £’000 £’000 
Cost:   
At the beginning of the year - - 
Additions 2,275 - 
Foreign exchange movement (107)  
At 31 December  2,168 - 
   
Accumulated impairment losses brought forward - - 
Charge for year  - - 
At 31 December  - - 
   
Carrying Amount   
At 31 December  2,168 - 

Goodwill is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss as the 
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. 
 
The Directors therefore undertook an assessment of the following areas and circumstances that could 
indicate the existence of impairment: 

• The Group’s right to explore in an area has expired, or will expire in the near future without 
renewal; 

• No further exploration or evaluation is planned or budgeted for; 
• A decision has been taken by the Board to discontinue exploration and evaluation in an area 

due to the absence of a commercial level of reserves; or 
• Sufficient data exists to indicate that the book value will not be fully recovered from future 

development and production. 
Following their assessment, the Directors concluded that no impairment charge was necessary for the 
year ended 31 December 2019. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

11. Property, plant and equipment 

Group Land  Mining Equipment Computer Equipment   Total  
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost      
At 31 December 2018 - - - - 
Acquired as a part of business combination 23 205 1 229 
Additions - 217 - 217 
At 31 December 2019 23 422 1 446 
Depreciation     
At 31 December 2018 - - - - 
Acquired as a part of business combination - - - - 
Charge for the year  - 5 - 5 
At 31 December 2019  5  5 
Carrying amount     
At 31 December 2019 23 417 1 441 
At 31 December 2018 - - - - 

12. Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables Group   Company 
 2019 2018  2019 2018 

 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 
Amounts owed by group undertakings                           -  -                    791  - 
Other debtors 131 2  59  2 
Prepayments 2 2                        2  2 

 133 4  852 4 

13. Trade and other payables 

 Group   Company  
 2019 2018  2019 2018 

 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 
Trade payables  47  53  42  53 
Short term loans 15 82  15  82 
Other payables                         78  2  77  2 
Accruals 33  21  33  21 

 173 158  167  158 
Short term loans consist of the loan to Mr Charles Bray, are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. This is 
referred to in note 19.  

14. Financial liabilities 

 Group   Company  
 2019 2018  2019 2018 

 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 
Loan notes  203  -  203  - 

 203  -  203  - 
Loan notes of £300,000 are interest free and expire on 31 December 2024. These have been discounted and are 
being amortised at an 8% market rate of interest.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

15. Financial instruments 

Categories of financial instruments 2019  2018 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost £’000  £’000 
Other receivables 72  2 
Cash and cash equivalents 246  2 
 318  4 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost    
Other payables 322  158 

 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
The Group is exposed through its operations to credit risk and liquidity risk. In common with all other 
businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments. This note 
describes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods 
used to measure them. Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughout 
this financial information. 
 
General objectives, policies and processes 
The Directors have overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s risk management 
objectives and policies. Further details regarding these policies are set out below: 
 
Capital management 
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to 
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
 
The capital structure of the Group consists of issued capital, reserves and retained earnings. The 
Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As a part of this review, the Directors 
consider the cost of capital, the risks associated with each class of capital and overall capital structure 
risk management through the new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt 
or the redemption of existing debt.  
The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.  
  
The management’s strategy remained unchanged from 2018.   
 
Market price risk 
The development and success of any project of the Group will be primarily dependent on the future 
prices of various minerals being exploited. Mineral prices are subject to significant fluctuation and are 
affected by a number of factors which are beyond the control of the Company. Future production from 
the projects is dependent on mineral prices that are adequate to make the project economic. 
 
Credit risk 
The Company’s credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial institutions. 
For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with minimum rating “A” are 
accepted. 
 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk arises from the Directors’ management of working capital. It is the risk that the Company 
will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. 
The Directors’ policy is to ensure that the Company will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet 
its liabilities when they become due. To achieve this aim, the Directors seek to maintain a cash balance 
sufficient to meet expected requirements.  
The Directors have prepared cash flow projections on a monthly basis through to 31 December 2020. 
At the end of the period under review, these projections indicated that the Group is expected to have 
sufficient liquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonably expected circumstances. 
 
Foreign exchange risk 
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various 
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the Rwandan Franc (“RWF”). Foreign exchange risk arises 
from future commercial transactions, recognised monetary assets and liabilities and net investments in 
foreign operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

Foreign exchange risk(continued) 
Net assets denominated in RWF at the year-end amounted to £0.5 million and net liability of £0.06 
million respectively. 
The Group does not hedge against foreign exchange movements 

16. Share capital 

The Ordinary Shares issued by the Company have a 1p par value and all fully paid. Each Ordinary 
Share carries one vote on a poll vote.  
 

  
Number of shares 

Share 
Capital 
£’000 

Share 
Premium 

£’000 
Brought forward at 1 January 2019       11,259,849,507  1,126 1,835 
Shares issued for cash 17,915,000,000  1,792 - 
Shares issued in exchange for Eastinco shares        6,000,000,000  600 - 
Shares issued to consultants           950,000,000  95 - 
As at 31 December 2019 (before share consolidation) 36,124,849,507 3,613 1,835 

    
As at 31 December 2019 (after share consolidation) 361,248,496 3,613 1,835 

 

17. Share based payments 

Options 
 
Equity settled share-option plan 
 
No further share options were granted during the accounting period. 
 
At 31 December 2019, 13,324,000 options remained in issue (2018 — 1,332,400,000). 
 
The fair values of the options granted have been calculated using Black-Scholes model 
assuming the inputs shown below: 
Share price £0.045 
Exercise price £0.010 
Time to maturity 10 years on CSOP 
Time to maturity 9 years, 8 1/2 and 7 1/2 years EBT 
Risk free rate 1.3% 
Volatility 30.0% 

 
An expense of £Nil has been recognised in the year (2018: £Nil) in respect of a share-based payment 
charge for the share options issued during the accounting period under the Employee Benefit Trust and 
CSOP. 
 
Warrants 
 
The following warrants were issued as part of share subscriptions: 
 
 2019 2018 
Outstanding at beginning of year 800,000,000 966,750,000  
Exercised during the year - (640,000,000) 
Granted in the year 18,390,000,000  800,000,000  
Lapsed in the year - (326,750,000) 
Outstanding at end of the year 19,190,000,000 800,000,000  

 
The total expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the year was £nil 
(2018: £nil).  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

18. Significant Group companies 

Significant subsidiaries held by the Group and consolidated in the Eastinco Mining And Exploration PLC 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 are listed in the table below. Some of the 
subsidiaries are not directly held by the Company but via intermediate holding companies. 
 
 Share-

holding Nature of Business Country of 
Incorporation 

Held directly:    
Eastinco Ltd 100% Mining & exploration Rwanda 

    
Held indirectly:    
Musasa Mining Ltd 85% Dormant Rwanda 

    
 
On 15 November 2019, the Company disposed of its holding in EME Mine Nigeria Limited for a nominal 
value. The Company no longer has investments in Nigeria. The holding in the company was recorded 
at nil value in the prior year financial statements. 

19. Related party transactions 

Transactions with Directors 
Mr. Charles Bray is a Director of the Company and during the year, Mr. Charles Bray received total fees 
of £93,872 (2018: Nil). The company owes £15,228 to him at the end of the year  (2018: £2,000). 
 
Mr. Mike Staten is a Director of the Company and during the year, Mr. Mike Staten received total fees 
of £93,872 (2018: Nil). During the accounting period, the outstanding convertible loan novated to Mike 
Staten of £82,500 were converted into 825,000,000 ordinary shares.  
 
Mr. Simon Retter is a Director of the Company and during the year, Mr. Simon Retter received total fees 
of £22,000 (2018: 6,200).  
 
Mr. Nicholas Nelson who resigned during 2019 was paid £19,328 as his full and final settlement. 
During the accounting period the company advanced loan of £44,069 (2018- £81,500) to Desert Rock 
and Exploration (Nigeria) Limited, a company which is controlled by Nicholas Nelson. This Desert Rock 
loan has been formally written off at the end of the year.   
 
At the year end, directors hold shares/warrants as below: 

Name   No. of Shares No. of Warrants 
Mr Charles Bray  - 90,000,000 
Edlin Holdings Limited  Director-Charles Bray 1,800,000,000 - 
Mr Mike Staten     1,576,500,000  1,300,000,000 
S J Retter  1,166,362 - 
D Marais  8,000,000 800,000,000 

 
 
Details of directors’ remuneration during the year are given in note 4. 
 
There are no other related party transactions.  

20. Ultimate controlling party 

The Directors consider that there is no controlling or ultimate controlling party of the Company. 
 

21. Capital commitments 

The Company has no capital commitments at the year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

22. Events after the reporting date 

Change of name 
On 09 January 2020, the Company announced change of name from Equatorial Mining and Exploration 
Plc to Eastinco Mining and Exploration Plc. 
 
A joint venture agreement 
As announced on 26 February 2020, the Company signed a joint venture agreement with Dynasty 
Construction Ltd to explore for tin, tungsten and tantalum mineral resources on a 600 hectare exploration 
site near Huye, Rwanda through its subsidiary Eastinco Limited.  
 
Debt facility 
 On 19 March 2020, the Company announced that it has arranged to enter into a USD 200,000 working 
capital facility agreement with Augustin Corp.  Augustin Corp. is a U.S. investment company owned by 
a trust benefitting family members of Charles Bray, the Executive Chairman of Eastinco; and as such, 
the transaction is considered a related party transaction.   
 
The Facility is secured against the physical assets of Eastinco Limited. The funds, if utilised, will be used 
for working capital purposes and to allow the Company to pursue its exploration of Huye and new 
investment targets. The Facility is provided for a term of up to 18 months and an interest rate equal to 
6% above commercial lending rates. 
 
Warrant exercises and share issues 
Since year-end to the date of this report, 48 million shares equivalent of warrants with a gross exercise 
consideration of £ 760,730 were exercised and that exercising warrants to date have been offered new 
four year warrants with a 3 pence exercise price for each warrant exercised.  
 
Following the conversion of 15,905,500 warrants the Concert party now holds 88,807,084 shares in the 
enlarged company, which represents 21.2% of the enlarged company. 
 
The Company has also issued 7,000,000 shares to professional advisors and service providers.   
  
COVID-19 
On the 11 March 2020 the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. Rwanda 
imposed one of Africa's first total shutdowns on 22 March 2020 and suspended mining operations in the 
country. The country has since lifted strict lockdown measures and our staff have resumed work and 
will continue to focus on administrative tasks including planning for the development and further 
exploration of the sites at Kuaka and Huye. 
 
Given the uncertainty with respect to the duration and severity of COVID-19 and its related economic 
impacts, it is likely that the Company will need to employ even more careful considerations and judgment 
pertaining to investment valuations. Key inputs to investment valuation models, such as cash flow 
forecasts and/or inputs into the discount rates, are likely to change, especially in industries where there 
is likely to be a shift in demand, disruptions in supply chain, etc. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 
on the Company at this stage is still unknown, and the Company will monitor the situation closely. 
 

23. Market Abuse Regulation (MAR) Disclosure  

Certain information contained in this announcement would have been deemed inside information for the 
purposes of Article 7 of Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 until the release of this announcement.
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